

SECTION 1

Name

- 1.1 The corporation shall be named Peak to Peak Charter Schools, Inc. and be referred to as the "Corporation" or "School" or "Peak to Peak."
- 1.2 The governing body of the School shall be the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2

Purpose

- 2.1 The School shall have the mission of providing broad access to an exemplary kindergarten through twelfth grade liberal arts, college preparatory education.
- 2.3 Peak to Peak intends to operate as a public Charter School as defined in C.R.S. 22-30.5-102. Once its Charter is granted, it will function as a nonprofit corporation claiming sovereign immunity under C.R.S. 22-30.5-104(4).
- 2.4 The Board of Directors shall have the purpose of administering and governing the charter school in a manner agreed to by the School and the Boulder Valley Board of Education [C.R.S. 22-30.5-104 (4)]. The Board of Directors is responsible for the operation of the school including, but not limited to, preparation of a budget, contracting for services, and personnel matters [C.R.S. 22-30.5-104 (7) (a)].
- 2.5 All money raised, after payment of related expenses, shall be utilized in support of the School. The Board of Directors shall allocate resources to the School at its sole discretion.

SECTION 3

Membership

- 3.1 The parents or legal guardians of a child enrolled in Peak to Peak, the Peak to Peak faculty, staff, administration and subscribers to the proposal of the school shall constitute the membership of Peak to Peak Charter Schools, Inc. Each family unit will have one vote per child enrolled or on the subscription roster.
- 3.2 The role of a member shall include:
 - a. attending general meetings;
 - b. staying informed on school issues by reading the school's newsletters and communications;
 - c. electing the members of the Board of Directors;
 - d. communicating opinions to the Board of Directors; and
 - e. serving/participating in volunteer roles whenever possible.
- 3.3 As a public school, Peak to Peak will conform to State and Federal statutes for non discrimination in its admission policies.

- b. The terms shall be staggered such that in odd-numbered years three of the seven Board seats are up for election, and in even-numbered years four of the Board seats are up for election.
- c. Board members may run for re-election.

5.4 Duties and Powers

- a. To elect officers from the Board members to serve as President, Vice-President, Treasurer, and Secretary;
- b. To set policy, in accordance with the Peak to Peak mission, goals, and educational program, necessary for the orderly day-to-day operation of the school;
- c. To set a budget for each school year based on the Boulder Valley School District's ("District") funds allocated to the school;
- d. To create a Budget Committee, a Hiring Committee, an Accountability Committee, and other committees as needed;
- e. To design personnel selection procedures and job descriptions consistent with legal requirements, to be used by the Hiring Committee;
- f. To hire and terminate staff members in accordance with District, State, and Federal guidelines;
- g. To promote enrollment in the school;
- h. To determine any fees due from students in accordance with District, State and Federal guidelines;
- i. To assess performance on standardized tests, and evaluate and recommend other assessments as required;
- j. To select at least one voting Board member, in addition to the Principal, to serve on the Hiring Committee;
- k. To select one Board member to serve on the Accountability Committee;
- l. To select one Board member to serve as liaison with the BVSD Board of Education and the District administration;
- m. To regularly attend Board meetings or be subject to removal from his/her position by a vote of the Board after four consecutive; unexcused absences from such meetings;
- n. To fill, by majority vote, any vacancies that may occur on the Board of Directors until the next regular election.

5.5 Initial Board of Directors

- a. The initial Board of Directors, and any Board members elected prior to the opening of the school, shall be elected by the subscribers of the proposed school.
- b. The initial Board is comprised of three members serving one-year terms and four members serving two-year terms.

SECTION 6

Duties of the Officers of the Board of Directors

- 6.1 The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, prepare and distribute an agenda for all meetings, coordinate the work of the officers of the Board, chair the Annual Meeting, and act as the official representative of the Board to the school community.

- 6.2 The Vice-President shall perform all duties of the President in his/her absence, and assist the President as necessary.
- 6.3 The Treasurer shall be responsible for all funds and securities of the School, receive and give receipts for money due the School; deposit all such money in the name of the school in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of Section 11 of these Bylaws; have final responsibility for the financial statements of the School; serve as a member of the Budget Committee, and ensure that any grant monies received are expended consistently with the terms of such grants.
- 6.4 The Secretary shall keep a record of all minutes of the Board of Directors and general membership meetings, distribute copies of the minutes to the Board of Directors, and keep and make available to the public copies of the minutes and all written committee reports, and keep the Corporate Seal.

SECTION 7

Elections

- 7.1 Nominations for the Board of Directors
- a. A ballot of candidates for the Board shall be prepared in March by a Nominating Committee consisting of no fewer than three members, with the majority of the committee members not concurrently serving as members of the Board of Directors.
 - b. The Nominating Committee shall solicit nominations from the membership for candidates for the Board.
 - c. The Nominating Committee shall prepare a ballot consisting of those nominated to be candidates.
 - d. A petition for a nominee signed by a minimum of 10% of the members shall automatically place that nominee on the ballot as a candidate.
- 7.2 Elections for the Board of Directors
- a. Members of the School shall vote for candidates for members of the Board in the spring of each year by secret ballot.
 - b. Members may vote for as many candidates as there are vacancies to be filled.
 - c. Election of the members of the Board shall be determined by a plurality of the votes cast.
 - d. To provide continuity of leadership, newly elected Board members shall attend as non-voting members until they formally assume their duties as Directors.
 - e. The term of office shall be from June 1 to May 31.
 - f. The Nominating Committee shall run all elections for the Board and tabulate results, which they shall certify to the Board at the first Board meeting following the conclusion of the election.

SECTION 8

Agenda Format of Meetings and the Decision Process

- 8.1 Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors
- a. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least once per month.
 - b. Meetings are open to the public, and notice of all meetings of the Board shall be given by posting in a designated public place at least 24 hours in advance, in accordance with Colorado's Open Meetings Law [C.R.S. 24-6-40].
 - c. Executive sessions shall be held only at posted regular or special meetings for the sole purpose of discussing personnel, legal, real estate, and other limited matters, in accordance with state law [C.R.S. 24-6-402 (4)].
- 8.2 Quorum
- a. At any meeting of the Board, a majority of the Board members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.
 - b. When a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board members present will decide any question, except when a larger vote is required by these Bylaws.
 - c. A tie vote of the Board constitutes a failure of that item to pass.
- 8.3 The agenda format for all meetings of the Board of Directors and committee meetings shall be: call to order, roll call, approval of minutes, public input, report by the President, report by the Principal, committee reports, old business, new business, Board member concerns, adjournment.
- 8.4 The rules of Robert's Rules of Order, Revised, shall govern procedures in all cases to which they are applicable, and in which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws and any Special Rules of Order that the Board of Directors may adopt.

SECTION 9 Standing Committee Responsibilities

- 9.1 Standing Committee members shall be responsible for gathering information, exploring options, reporting on progress made toward meeting goals, and bringing recommendations to the Board of Directors for discussion and action.
- 9.2 All committees shall consist of parent volunteers and any interested community member or Peak to Peak administrative staff or faculty member.
- 9.3 Standing Committees requiring a Board Member
- a. The Hiring Committee shall be responsible for recruiting and recommending, based on selection procedures and job descriptions approved by the Board, candidates for the positions of Principal and staff and faculty members of the School.
 - b. The Accountability Committee shall be responsible for the following tasks:
 1. To make recommendations for assessment of the educational program, student achievement, and staff, parent and student satisfaction;
 2. To make recommendations for establishing goals and a plan for improvement based on the needs assessment and consistent with the mission and goals of the school;
 3. To monitor the progress made toward meeting the improvement goals;

4. To solicit input from staff, parents, and students during all phases of assessment, plan development, implementation and evaluation; and
 5. To submit an annual report to the Board of Directors and the District, and make it available to the public.
- c. The Budget Committee shall be responsible for developing and submitting an annual balanced budget to the Board of Directors for approval.

9.4 Other standing committees shall include, with approval of the Board, Communications, Outreach, Curriculum, Enrollment and Registration, Facilities, Fundraising, Grant Writing, Scheduling, Social, Transportation, Technology, and Volunteer Coordination.

SECTION 10 Amendments

10.1 The mission or goals of Peak to Peak may be altered, amended or repealed and a new mission or goals may be adopted only by vote of the general membership. Sections 3.1, 3.2, 4.1, 4.3, 4.6, 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4(b), 5.4(c), 5.4(e), 5.4(f), 5.4(h), 5.4(m), 5.4(n), 6.3, 6.4, 7.1, 7.2 8.1, 8.2, 10.1, 10.2, 10.3, 10.4, 10.5 of these Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed only by vote of the general membership. The proposed amendment must be published at least thirty days prior to any vote of the membership.

10.2 The Peak to Peak Board of Directors may pass a resolution proposing an amendment pursuant to 10.1 and shall submit such proposed amendment to a vote of the membership.

10.3 Any member may propose an amendment pursuant to 10.1 by providing the Board with a proposed amendment signed by at least 10% of the membership.

10.4 Voting by the general membership of Peak to Peak pursuant to 10.1 shall be by ballot and returned in person, by mail or electronically.

10.5 In order for any amendment pursuant to 10.1 to take effect, at least 66% of those voting must cast ballots in favor of the amendment, and at least 30 members or 30% of the membership, whichever is greater, must have cast valid ballots.

10.6 If any section of these Bylaws is found to be in violation of school district, State of Colorado or Federal guidelines or law, that section shall be rendered invalid, but the remaining Bylaws shall remain in force as though such invalid section were not part of these Bylaws.

SECTION 11 Contracts, Loans, Checks and Deposits

11.1 Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the School. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

11.2 Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the School and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a vote by the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. This language should not be construed to mean that the School cannot issue purchase orders or pay for approved expenditures in the ordinary course of business.

- 11.3 Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the School, shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the School and in such manner as shall be from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.
- 11.4 Deposits. All monies received by the School must be deposited into a bank or other financial institution. All funds of the School not otherwise employed shall be maintained on deposit to the credit of the School in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

SECTION 12
Fiscal Year

- 12.1 The fiscal year of the School shall begin on the 1st day of July and end on the 30th day of June of each year.

SECTION 13
Corporate Seal

- 13.1 The Board of Directors shall provide a corporate seal which shall be circular in form and shall have inscribed thereon "Peak to Peak Charter Schools, Inc." and the words "Corporate Seal."

SECTION 14
Waiver of Notice

- 14.1 Unless otherwise provided by law, whenever any notice is required by any Board of Directors member under the provisions of these Bylaws or under the provision of the Articles of Incorporation or under the provisions of the applicable Business Corporation Act, waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

SECTION 15
Use of Assets and Dissolution

- 15.1 As a not-for-profit corporation, no member or officer may be unduly enriched from assets of the corporation. All assets are held solely for the support of the School.
- 15.2 Upon dissolution of Peak to Peak, all corporate assets will be disposed of as stated in the Articles of incorporation.
- 15.3 *The allocation of assets among these organizations shall be made at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors.*

SECTION 17
OFFICES

16.1 The principal office of the School in the State of Colorado shall be located at 3938 Promontory Court, in the County of Boulder. The School may move this office and/or have other offices as the Board of Directors may require from time to time.

The above Bylaws are certified to have been adopted on the _____ day of _____, 1998

Secretary